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1 - -pOo-- 1 Sequent Computer Systems in Portland, Oregon. After

2 PROCEEDINGS 2 Sequent Compaq Computer Systems in Houston, Texas. |

3 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Here begins Videotape No. 1 | 3 After Compag, I joined Brightiink Networks in Sunnyvale, [§

4 in the deposition of David Redgers, in the matter of The 4 California. And after Brightlink, IP Unity in Milpitas, B

5 SCO Group v. IBM,|in U.5. District Court, District of 5 California, whera I'm currently employed. ;

& Utah, Case No. 2:03CV-0294 DAK. & Q. Can you tell me approximately the years that

7 Today's date Is June 10th, 2004. The time on 7 you were at Digital? '

B the videa monitor i5 B:06. _ 8 A. T was employed by Digital from 1973 to 1983,

9 The video operator today is Patrick Murray, a 9 Q. And what years were you employed dt Sequent? i
10 notary public, contracted by Legalink New York of 10 A. From 1983 to 1996. H
11 New York, New York. ' 11 Q. Can you review the positions that you held at
12 This video deposition is taking place at 2050 12 Sequent from 1983 to 19567 '

13 Gateway Place, Sap Jose, California, and was noticed by 13 A. Yes. Tjoined the company as the

14 Christopher Kaa of|Cravath, Swaine & Moore. 14  vice president of engineering. After vice president of

15 Counsel, plgase voice-identify yourselves and 15 engineering, I was the chief information officer.

16 state whom you represent. 16 During a posting in France, 1 was responsible for remote
17 MR. KAQ: Chris Kzo, with Cravath, Swaine & 17 development sites in Europe and in Japan. And when 1

18 Moore LLP, on behalf of defendant IBM and the witness 18 returned to the United States, I was head of the

19 here today, Mr. Rodgers. 19 professional services organization.
20 MR. HEISE: Mark Heise, from Boies Schiller, 20 Q. While you were the vice president of
21 on behalf of The SCO Group; and here with me today is ,, |21 engineering, you were based in the -~
22 Mark James, also gn behalf of The SCO Group, from Hatch, |22 A, In-
23 James & Dodge. 23 Q. - United States?
24 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The court reporter today is | 24 A. - Portland, Oregon.
25 Ana Dub of LegalLink. ' 25 Q. And when was your posting overseas?
Page & Page B |2

3 Will the reporter please swear in the witness. 1 A. From 1991 to 1993, ‘

2 DAYID P. RODGERS, . 2 Q. Andwhen you returned in 1993, you were then

3 sworn by the Certified Shorthand Reporter, 3 in professional services? ‘

4 testitied as follows: 4 A. Yes,

5 EXAMINATION BY MR. KAD 5 Q. And what responsitilities did you have while

6 MR. KAQ: Q. Good morning. Can you please | & you were in the professional services group?

7 state your full name for the record, Mr. Rodgers. 7 A. It was prindpally interacting with customers

8 A. Yes. I'm| David Parran Rodgers. 8 and go-to-market partners around solution creation,

9 Q. And can you please state your full address, 9 systems engineering, helping customers to architect
10 A. 21359 Toll Gate Road, Saratoga, California. 10 large-scale enterprise business applications.

11 Q. Can you review your educational history with |11 Q. And from approximately 1986 -- or excuse me --

12 me, for the record, after high school? 12 1983 to 1991, you were the vice president of

13 A. Okay. I gttended Carnegie-Mellon University, |13 engineering?

14 Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. T graduated in 1968 witha {14 A. That's correct,

15 Bachelor of Science in electrical engineering. 15 Q. Can you describe for me the responslbmties

16 Q. Did you do any studies after that? 16 that you had while you were the vice president of i
17 A. Idid an incomplete M.B.A. program at Clark 17 engineering? ;
18 University in Wolcester, Massachusetts. 18 A. Right. My -- the product of Sequent at the H
19 Q. Now, can you review your -- briefly review 19 time consisted of a hardware platform, an operating :
20 your employment history for me after graduatmg from [20 system, and some additional application software to make {i
21 Carnegie-Mellon? 21 that system useful. My responsibilities were to :
22 A. Right. Iworked for a time for 22 supervise the hardware development, the software 5
23 Camnegie-Meilon University. After Camegie-Mellon, I |23  development, the documentation, and the testing of those |;
24  joined Digital Equipment Corporation in Maynard, 24 two products. i
25 Messachusetts. After Digital Equipment, I joined 25 Q. By the "two products,” you mean the ¢
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. Page 9 . Page 11 E
1 operating -- 1 Q. Forgive me. I think [ skipped over this :
2 A. The hardware and the software, 2 eartier, but of course, at any time during this i
3 Q. - system? : 3 deposmon if you need to take a break, just let me know
4 A, The operating system and the hardware. 4 and we'll take a break. And if I ask you any questions
5 Q. Okay. And|sorry. Maybe I'm getting confused. 5 that you don't understand, let me know and Tl try to
& 1think you mentioned that there was a hardware 6 rephrase so you understand what I'm asking.
7 platform, operating system software, and then 7 I guess I should also ask [f you've ever been
8 application software. C ' B deposed before.
9 A. Right. 9 A. Yes, I have.
10 Q. 50 as the vice president of engineering, you . 10 Q. Can you tell me in what crrcumstance you were
11 were responsible for what with respect to thosa three 11 deposed before?
12 categories? 12 A. Twas a party in an automobile accident case,
13 A, Isupervised the individuals doing the work. 13 and I gave my deposition as a result of that suit, and
14 Q. After leaving Sequent in 1996, 1 believe you 14 the case was eventually settied. i
15 said you went to Compag. 15 Q. You did not end up testifying at trial in that
16 A. That's corredt. 16 case? ‘
17 Q. How mary| years were you employed at Compaq? | 17 A. 1did not _ }r
18 A. Approximately three years. Two of the years I 18 Q. And how long ago was that? ,
19 was posted in Houston, and the third year [ was posted |19 A. It wasin -- I don't remember the date of the Li
20 in California, Cuperting. _ + |20 deposition, but it was in 2001 that the accident took
21 Q. And can yau briefly describe for me what your 21 place.
22 responsibilities were at Compaq? 22 Q. Did that accident occur around here?
23 A. Right. T jojned Compaq as vice president of 23 A. Tt occuired very near my home. .
24 business applicatidns, which was bath an engineering and | 24 MR, KAQ: Okay. Forthe record, at the
25 a marketing responsibility that comprised relationships 25 Frasure deposition, I screwed up and we didn't use
) Page 10 Page 12
1 with key application providers like SAP, Baan, 1 consecutive numbering; but at -- my understanding is
2 PeopleSoft, Craclg, Microsoft, and some others. 2 today at the Wilson deposition, they're going to pick up
-3 And the engineering component of that jobwas | 3  where Sontag left off --
4 to create configuration tools and go-to-market aids for 4 MR. HEISE: Okay.
5 the Compag indirect sales channel. 5 MR. KAO: - which I believe was 74. So
6 Q. And approxlmately what year did you Ieave 6 they're going to start with 75.
7 Compaq? 7 MR, HEISE: Okay.
8 A. Tt was in 1999, right at the end. 8 MR. KAD: So I'm going to start - we'll just
g Q. And you went to Brightfink Networks? 9 have this marked as 100, That should give enough
10 "A. T went to Brightiink Networks, yes. 10 space--
11 Q. How long were you at Brightlink? il MR. HEISE: That's fine,
12 A. About two years. The company ceased 12 MR. KAO: -- T think.
13 operations, 13 And I'm sorty about the -
14 Q. In approximately 20017 14 MR. HEISE: We knew it was going to happen.
15 A, It ceased lpperations in, I think, Aprif of 15 It was just a matter of when,
16 2001. Might have been a little later. The winding down | 16 MR. KAO: So this will be Exhibit 100.
17 tock some time. 17 {Whereupon, Defendant's Exhibit 100 was
18 Q. And afterthat, you went to IP Unity? 18 marked for identification.)
19 A, Yes. 19 MR, KAD: Q. You've been handed by the court
20 Q. And what is it you currently do at IP Unity? 20 reporter, Mr. Rodgers, what's been marked as Exhibit 100 |t
21 A. I'm responsible for hardware and software 21 inthiscase. And I'fl ask you to review this exhibit,
22 development of an enhanced services product for 22 and my first question, after you've had a chance to i
23 telephony; "enhanced services" meaning voice mal, 23 review it, Is whether or not you recognize what i
24 conferencing, other applications such as find-me, 24 Exhibit 100 is. 1
25 follow-me, caller screening. ' 25 A. Yes. This is my deposition, prepared iast Ji

3 (Pages 3 to 12)
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Page 13 1 B Page 15
1  year 1 A. Yes. '
2 Q. Declaration]? ' 2 'Q. Now, in paragraph 2 you state that you
3 A. I'msorry, Dedlaration. Sorry. . | 3 executed several agreements with AT&T Technoiogles for
4 Q. Just to clarify, have you been deposed in this 4 the licensing of Unix software. Do you see that?
5 case - : ' 5 A. Yes. o
6 A. 1have not been deposed -- & Q. And attached as Exhibit 1 there Is 3 document
7 Q. -- apart from today? 7 titled "AT&T Technologies, Inc., Software Agreement.’
8 A. --In this case before today. I‘m sorry 8§ Do you see that? il
9 Q. And if you Jook &t page 6 of this declaration, 9 A. Mm-hmm, yes.
10 s that your signature, Mr. Rodgers? 10 Q. Can you ook at that exhibit? Do you °
11 A. Yes, itis, 11 recognize this document? .
12 Q. Now, withgut -- as your counsel, I instruct 12 A. Yes, Ido.
13 you net to reveal apy cdmmunications you had -- direct | 13 Q. Canyou tell me what it Is?
14 communications ygu've had with me. But without doing | 14 A. This particutar document gives Sequent the i
15 so, can you describe how it is that this dedaration, 15 right to access the source code for ATET software and ;
16 Exhibit 100, came to be prepared? - 16 essentially to use it to produce a dditional works on the
17 A. Certainly. Iwas contacted by your offlce, I - |17 Sequent hardware, ‘ §
18 think by you personally, to ask if [ recalled the fact 18 Q. And do you recall what particular software :
19 situation around some contracts between AT&T and 19  this software agreement related to?
20 Sequent. And after some discussion and some question | 20 A. Itwas a version of ATRT System V. 1don't
21 and answer, a draft declaration was prepared by your 21 actually remember which edition of AT&T System V it was.
22 offices. I received that draft, edited it, corrected 22 Tthinkit was 5.2, but T don't recall. .
23 it, made it conform to my recollection. And then a 23 Q. Unix System V?
24 final form was prepared for my signature. [ executed it |24 A. Unix System V. lﬁ' .
25 and returned it to you. 25 Q. And at the bottom of the page on this ;
. ‘ Page 14 - Page 16
1 Q. Do you have in your possession any of the 1 agreement, there's a signature there. Is that your '
2 markups that you did — 2 signature?
3 A, Idonot. 3 A, tis,
4 Q. - on the draft? 4 Q. And you executed this software agreement on
5 A. Idonot. ‘ 5 behalf of Sequent?
[ Q. T'l ask you to Yake your time to review each 5 A. ldid.
7 of the paragraphs| in yeur declaration, and after you've| 7 Q. If you can look at the document behind Tab 2,
8 done so, can you et me know? . 8 which is tiled "AT&T Technologies, Inc., Sublicensing
9 A. Certainly. 9 Agreement."
10 I'm ready. 10 A. Yes,
11 Q. Do you believe everything that you've stated | 11 Q. Do you see that?
12 inyour declaration to be true and accurate -- 12 A. Mm-hmm,
13 A. Yes. ' 13 Q. Do you recognize this agreement?
14 Q. - to the best of your knowledge? 14 A. Yes, Ido. '
15 Is there anything about — anything in this 15 Q. Can you tell me what this agreement is?
i6 declaration that ypu wish to change? 16 A. This agreement gives Sequent the right to
17 A. No. It's an acqurate statement, 17 distribute the work, based on'the ATRT System V source §
18 Q. Okay. Naw, turning back just to the page 18 code that was previously licensed, to its customers,
19 that's marked page 2, I'll ask you to look now at some {19 bath directly and indirectly. .
20 specific paragraphs within your dedlaration. 20 Q. And at the bottom of the first page, there's a
21 First, as tq paragraph 1, is everything 21 signature there. Is that your signature? '
22 contained in paragraph 1 true and accurate? 22 A, Itis.
23 A. Yes. 23 Q. And did you execute this sublicensing -
24 Q. Okay. Looking at paragraph 2, is everything |24 agreement on behalf of Sequent?
25 contained in paragraph 2 true and accurate? 25 A, 1did. ]
4 (Pages 13 to 16)
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Page 17| Page 19 &
1 Q. And if you ¢an look with me at the document | 1 And my role in that was to review the _
2 behind Tab 3, which is titled "AT&T Technalogies, Inc,, | 2 documents and to ascertain the intent of the parties, §
3 Substitution Agreernent " do you recognize this 3 make sure that we were getting what we needed and that
4  agreement? 4 it was a fair deal, : 1‘
5 A, ldo. 5 Q. buring the course of the negotations with i
6 Q. Can you tellme what this is? 6 AT&T, did you have any personal interactions with anyone E
7 A. Tdon't recali the precise terms that were 7 from AT&T? i
& being modified, but it essentially was an agreement 8 A. From time to time, 1 partlc:pated in
9 between the companies to change certaln specificterms | 9 conference calls. I don't recall - it's possible, but .
10 of the earlier agreement. 10 1 don't recall that we ever met face to face. I think
11 Q. And Is that your signature at the bottom of 11  they were all telephone interactions.
12 the page? : 12 Q. And on these canference calls, were the terrns
13 . A, Itis. 13- of the licensing agreements dlSCussed’
14 Q. And did yol exacute this agreement on behalf | 14 A. Yes, thay were.
15 of Sequent? ' 15 Q. Do you remember whao from AT&T was on these
16 A. Idid. 16 conference calls?
17 Q. And turning badk to your declaration itself, 17 A. Idonot. The one thing I do remember is that
18 at paragraph 2 of your declaration, ate the three 1B it wasn't the guy who signed the agreement. It wasn't
19 agreements that we just iooked at the agreements that | 19 Mr. Wilson. It was another guy, but I don't remember
20 you discuss in paragraph 2 of your declaration? 20  who it was.
21 A. Yes, they are, 21 Q. Do you -- have you ever had any interactions.
22 Q. -Now, if you can turn to page 3 of your 22 with Mr. Wilson?
23 dedaration, T'll refer you to paragraph 5; and I'll ask 23 A. I might have since, I mean, I might have met
4124 you, for the record, just to read your statement in 24 him at some conference or something like that, but not
25 paragraph 5. 25 during this ime, :
Page 18 . Page 20
1 A. Yes, 1 Q. Do you remember what other Sequent
2 “Although I did not persona lly negotiate the 2 representatives were on the conference calls with AT&T?
3 Sequent Agreements with representa tives of 3 A. Usually, it would have been Roger Swanson, who
4 AT&T Technologies, I carefully reviewed the 4 is the director of software engineering. We may have
5 agreements myself and with other Sequent 5 induded some of the key software engineers at the time
6 em ployees befare ex ecuting them and have & that we were discussing pa rticular technical issues.
7 personal knowiedge pf the pa rties' 7 Q. Do you remember who those individuals were?
8 understa nding of, and intent behind, the 8 A. Idon'tremember predsely. It probably would
9 terms and conditions of the agreements.”- 9 have been Bob Beck, who was the principal software -
10 Q. Isthata trye and accurate statement? 10 architect for the Dynix operating system. Might have
11 A. ltis. ' 11 been Bob Kasten, who'was also a principal software
12 Q. And can yop expiain to me what your 12 engineer. But I don't have a precise recollection.
13 . involvement was with the negotiation and execution of 13 Q. You've mentioned in your testimony the Dynix
14 the agreements that you executed on behalf of Sequent? 14 operating system. Can you just exp{am -
15 A. Yes. Atthetime, Sequent had need to extend 15 A. Yes.
16 its basic product offering, the Dynix operating system, 16 Q. --what you're referring to when you say that?
17 to aliow additional applications that were built for the 17 A. Yes. Sequent -- the principal product, as I
18 AT&T System V operating environment, which is different 18 mentioned earlier; of Sequent was a hardware platform f
18 than the Unix 850 4.2 environment that the Sequent 19  that consisted of muftiple micreprocessars sharing 2
20 product was buitt upon. And so Sequent needed to have 20 common memory structure, and the operating environment |:
21 access to the source code in order to m ake that 21 was a variant of Unix that was derived from the Berkeley F
22 possible. Roger Swanscn and others in the software 22 Standard Distribution 4.2 code. So Dynix was a variant g
23 development team worked with people at AT&T to secure a | 23 adapted to the multiple microprocessor architecture of i
24 license to that source code so that the work could - 24 the Sequent hardware. ;
25 begin. 25 Q. Did you have any involvement in developing the §
——: PO I T AT = — rerrra—rS -—--—E
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DAVID P. RODGERS
‘ Page 21 ' Page 23
1 Dynix operating system? | 1 (Record read.)
2 A, Twouldn't claim architectural or any 2 THE WITNESS: "The agreement further
3 adthorship. Yes, of course T wrote programs and 3 granted Sequent the right to m odify Unix
4 reviewed plans, and|I had a direct involvement in the 4 software products and to prepare derjvative
5 development of the Pynix operating system, but Twould | 5 works based upon such products.”
6 notconsider myself an author of the software. 6 MR. KAQ: Q. Are your statements in
7 Q. Do you recall apgroximately when the first 7 paragraph 6 true and accurate?
8 . version of the Dynix operating system was created? 8 A. Yes,
g A, The first working version probably was created g Q. Andcanyou explain what you mean by the
10 sometime in early 1584. 10 statement that it was your understangding that the
11 Q. Angd do you specifically recall that the Dynix. 11 licensing agreements were standard form agreements?
12 operating system whs based on the Berkeley -~ the BSD {12 A. Yes. If I may give you some context, AT&T'S
13 4.2 release, or is that - 13  interest at this point in time was to create & broader
14 A. No. That's 14 following for the System V variation of Unix, and so
i5 MR. HEISE: | Objection to form, 15 the -- they had a kind of a proselytizing or marketing ‘
16 You may answer. 16 program going on to get people signed up to use the A T&T i
17 MR. KAO: Q. O, I should also note that 17 Unix variant.
18 during the course gf the deposition, counsel may object. | 18 As & consequence of that, there were
19° So you should give|-- before answering any of my 19 applications written for the System V variant of Unix
20 questions, you shoufd pause and affow counsel to 20 that Sequent wanted to have access to; and so we heeded §
21 interpose an chjection. + 121 tolicense from AT&T the spedfic elements, the specific
22 A. Shall I answer? 22 APls that were necessary to allow those -- those
23 Q. Yeah, you can answer if you - 23 applications to run.
24 A. Yes, the Dynix operating system was based on 24 That meant that we needed to look at the.
25 the Berkeley Standard l:jistribution 4.2 version, 35 source code, take those little elem ents of the source
T Page 22 _ . Page 24 |¢
i Q. Going bacl to the conference calls you 1 code that were System V specific, and weld them into the
2 discussed being a part of with ATRT, what was the 2  Dynix operating system envirohment.
3 purpose of those calls, tb the best you can recall? 3 Q. When you say "APls,"” what do you mean by that?
4 A. Thelicensing agreement is somewhat vague, and | 4 A. Application pregramming interfaces.
5 50 we wanted to upderstand the meaning or the intent of | 5 Q. Do you remember, sitting here today, what
6 some of the paragraphs. 6 specific elements of the Unix System V program Sequent
7 Q. Let's turn back to your declaration, And 7 wanted access to?
8 looking at paragraph 6, I'fl ask you to read paragraph 6 8 A. Tdon't recall a specific -- I mean, I can say
9 for the record, if ypu could. - 9 generally that it was the system calls of System V,
10 A, Yes. . 10 which are somewhat different than the system ¢alls of
11 "It was my understgnding that the licensing 11 Berkeley, but I don't remember precisely which
12 agreements {fiat I gxecuted were standard form 12  appiication needed which systam call.
13 agreements used by AT&T Technologies to i3 Q. And can you just describe for me what a system
14 license Unix sbftware products to its users. 14 calls?
15 The Software |Agretment granted Segquent the 15 A. Right. An operating system generally is 2
16 right to use Unix sdftware products, 16 resource allocation piece of programming. And things .E
17 including source code, for its internal 17 that the operating system allocates are pieces of :
18 business purposesl The agreement further 18 memory, access to a processor, access to a storage
i8 granted Sequent the right to modn‘y Unix 19 device such as a disk, access to a terminal device. The ‘g
20 software products and to prepare” - 20 system calls are the way the software expresses the need :
21 THE COURT REPORTER: Excuse me. 21 1o access one of those resources. f
22 MR. KAD: |You may need to read a little slower 22 Q. Iguess, going back to a question that 1 ‘
23 s the court repofter can get everything down. 23 asked, I'm not sure -- mavbe 1 asked it unclearly —- §
24 THE WITNESS: . Oh, excuse me. Where shall I 24 about your -- that you answered the question earlier 3
25 pick up? 25 that I had asked about what it is you meant by the fact
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. Page 25
that you executed sta 1dard'form agreements used by AT&T

Page 27 ||

i 1 that
2 Technologies. 2 Y ou state that you did not understand this
3 A. Yes. AT&T prowvided a document, and -- which 3 language to give AT&T Technologies the right to assert
4 is the dorument that's hs.-re-j1 under Tab 1, and they 4 ownership or control over modifications or derivative -~
5 represented it as the form that they used routinely with 5 works prepared by Sequent, except to the extent that the
"6 all of their customers -all'of their partners, to ‘ 6 licensed Unix software product was included in suth .
7 provide access to the [sourde code. 7 modifications or derivative works.
8 Q. Did anyone from AT&T at any point ever 8 Do you see that?
9 communicate to you that they intended to treat their 9 MR. HEISE: Objection; form. :
1¢ ficensees for Unix Sygtem V the same way? 10 Y ou may answer.’ ‘
11 MR. HEISE: Objecticn to form. 11 MR. KAO: Q. Do you see that in your
12 You may answer. 12 declaration?
13 THE WITNESS: 1 dbn't recall that particular 13 A, Yes, Idoseethat
14 content. T 14 Q. Can you explain to me what you mean by that?
15 MR. KAO: Q.| Turning now to paragraph'7 of 15 A. It would have been foclish of me, as an
16  vyour declaration, can|you fead paragraph 7 — 16 officer of a venture finance start-up company, to give
17 A. Yes. 17 away the rights to the company's core products in
18 Q. - forme, pléase. ; 18 perpetuity. I mean, I certainly would not have done
19 A. "Section 2.01 of the Software Agreement 19 that. Somy understanding -- and this was confirmedin [
20 states that Sequent's 1right to use includes 20 some phone calls -- my understanding was that what ATAT }
21 the right to modify such SOFTWARE PRODUCT and 21 wanted to hold private was thelr contribution, thefr -
22 to prepare derivative works based on such 22 source code contribution, and that that work which had
23 SOFTWARE PRODUCT, providing that the 23 already been created by Sequent and any work that in the
24 resulting materials arc{t treated hereunder as 24 future was created by Sequent, not based upon that
25 part of the origi:’-al SdFI‘WARE PRODUCT.! 1 25 source code, remained the property of Sequent.
Page 26 ) " page 28
1 did not understand this language to give AT&T 1 Q. 0id you understand Section 2.01 of the i-
2 Technologies the right to assert ownership or 2 software agreement to impose any restrictions on
3 control over modifications or derivative 3 Sequent's use of code that Sequent developed on its own?
4 works prepared byl Sequent, except to the 4 A. No, Idid not.
5 extent that thi licensed Unix software 5 Q. Even if that code was contained in a Dynix
6 product was i cluded in such medifications or 6 product that had Unix System V code in it?
7 derivative works, I would never have signed 7 MR, HEISE: Objection to form.
8 an agreement that would grant ownership or 8 Y ou may answer,
g controt to AT&T Technologies over g THE WITNESS: Yes, My understandfng of the
10 modifications|or derivative works prepared by 10  license is that the Unix System V code had to be
11 Sequent 1o the extent those modifications or 11  maintained as the AT&T private property and withheld
12 derivative works contained no part of the 12 from disclosure but, if there were other elem ents of the
13 Unix software product licensed from AT&T 13 software product created by Sequent, that those were
14 Technologies,” 14 Sequent's to dispose of as it chose.
15 Q. Are the state ents that you make in 15 MR. KAO: Q. If you canturnto page 4 of
|16 paragraph 7 of your declaration true and accurate? 16 your declaration, I'll have you read paragraph 8 of your
17 A. They are. 17 deciaration, if you could. 1 guess, for the-court
18 Q. Can you 1- well, first, let's look at the 18 reporter's benefit and for the jury's benefit, if you
19 document behin Tab 1, at the software agreement. 19 could take your time and read it slowty.
20 A. Yes. [ 20 A, Cenainly.
21 Q. s the language that you read from i in your 21 "As 1 understood the Software Agreement
22 dedaration contained in Section 2.01 of this agreement | 22 between Sequent 2 nd AT&T Technologies,
23 that's attached as Tat 1?7 23 Sequent wa s free to use, copy, distribute or
24 A, Yes, itis. | 24 disclose a ny modifications or derivative
25 Q. And can jou e‘xplam to me — weil, strike 25 works developed by Sequent, provided that it
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e

Page 29 E
1 did not copy, distribute or disclose any 1 A. 1do not. i
2 portion of the licensed Unix software product 2 Q. Do you have any personal knowledge as to what f
3 source code (except|as otherwise perm:tted by 3 BSD Unix code is contained in Dynix? %
4 the ficensing agreements).” 4 A. A substantial portion, but I couldn't claim to i
5 Q. Are the statements that you make in 5 know what preportion. 4
6 paragraph 8 of your declaration — 6 Q. What is your understanding of what the term -k
"7 A. They are. 7 “derlvative work" means? i
B Q. - true and accurate? B A. A derivative work is something that contains 3
9 And can you tell me what you base your 9 all or part of some other piece of work. ‘ i
10 understanding of the software agreement on? 10 Q. Do you have an understanding of what the term {3
11 A. A combination of|reading of the document and 11 “modifications" mean? 3
12 conversations with my staff and the AT&T parties to the | 12 A, "Modifications” means either an augmentation,' i
13 agreement. 13 meaning an additional function, ar a change to ;
14 Q. Andwhen you say "my staff," can you — 14 accommedate some other factor. i
i5 A. Principally, Roger Swanson and Bob Beck and 15 Q. And by "augmentation,” do you mean addlng -
16 others. ) 16 well, how do you augment something?
17 Q. And is that the understanding you had when you | 17 MR. HEISE: Objection; form.
18 executed these agreements? 18 Y ou may answer.
19 A, Yes, itis. ' 19 MR. KAO: Q. You could answer,
20 Q. Tl ask you to now read paragraph ¢ into the 20 A. "Augmentation" means an additional function.
21 record, if you could, Take your time, 21 If I can use an example, based on the earlier
22 A. "It is my understanding that Sequent’s " 122 description, the Unix operating environment, as
23 Dynix products|might include some small parts 23  conceived both by Berkeley and by AT&T, had no notion of ¢
24’ of the licensed |Unix System V source code, 24  multiple processors and the need to preserv e the content
25 although I dont [sic) personally know 25 of a cache memory system in order to improve
) - . Page 30 - Page 32 |z
1 -whether it does or ngt. I also do not know 1 performance. So an augmentation that exists in Dynix is
2 whether Dynix {s s0 gimilar to Unix System V 2 so-calted processor affinity. It's the ability of a
3 that it may be" |-- "may properly be viewed as 3 program to say: 1 would like to continue running on the
4 a 'derivative work’ based on Unix System V, 4 processor that I was running on before 50 that T can
5 pardcularly in light of the fact that Dynix 5 preserve those dynamic memory contents and, as a resuit,
6 ‘'was originally created using Berkeley & operate at 2 higher speed.
7 Software Design” -- parenthetically -- 7 So an augmentation that exists in Dymx is
8 "{'8SD") Unix ag a base and not AT&T 8 processor affinity. 1t'sa system call that doesn't
g Technalogies' Linix System V. In any event, 9 exist in ancther version of Unix, that specifially
.110 as 1 understood the $equent Agreements, 10 allows for a program to get higher execution speed. I
11 - Sequent was free to bse, copy, distribute, or i1 Q. And is an augmentation implemented through new
12 disdose Dynix (induding source code), 12 source code?
13 provided that it|did not copy, distribute or 13 A. It's compietely new source code.
14 disclose any Unix Sygtem V source code that 14 Q. Now, you also mentioned, in your understanding
15 might be contained therein (except as 15 of the word "modification,” that it could include
16 otherwlise permitted by the licensing 16 changes.
17 agreements)." 17 A_ That's right,”
18 Q. Mr. Rodgers, are the statements that you make 18 Q. Can you explain to me what you mean by that?
19 ip paragraph 9 of ygur declaration true and accurate? 19 A. Certainly. For example, the compilers that
20 A. Yes, they arp. | 20 were used to build the Dynix operating system are the
21 Q. Now,in par'Egraph 9 you discuss the fact 21 Berkeley-derived compilers, and there are subtle
22 that — well, strike that, . 22 differences in the way symbols are treated. And so it
23 Do you know -- dd you have any personal 23 might be necessary, if you wanted to compile, without
24 knowledge as to what Unlix System V code is contained in |24 adding additional function, & System V source module to
25 Dyni? ! 25 make a modification that was really cosmetic or had no
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I Page 33 Page 35 |3
1 meaning other than fo make it compatible with the form | 1 Q. Is that an accurate statement? §
2 of the compiler. So(you might change a symbol-from 2 A Itis.. |
3 having a dollar sign |n It tb not having a dollar sign 3 Q. And in paragraph 11, you note that 4
4 in it to make it com;[atibl 4 Section 7.06(a} of the software agreement includes §
5 Q. Have you ever hgard of something, Mr. Rodgers, | 5 language concerning confidentiality; is that r|ght7 E
6 celled Dynix/ptx? 6 A. Yes, Ido. :
7 A Yes. That was a later version of the Dynix 7 Q. Can you turn with'me to the software agreement
8 operating system that was prepared that had a higher 8 that's attached behind Tab 1 of your declaration. And i
9 degree of compatibflity with the System V operating 9 there, if you can turn to Section 7.06(a). -
18 environment, ' ] 10 A. Okay. ;
11 Q. Do you know when Dynix/ptx was created? i1 Q. My only question is whether this
12 A, 1don't have a predse date recollection. I 12 Section 7.06{a) that appears in the software agreement
13 was certainly during my tenure at Sequent, but I don't 13 is the same section that you discuss in your
14 have an exact recollection. And it was certainly -- 14 declaration.
15 certainly after 1985, 1986. - 15 A. Yes, itis. )
16 Q. Did -~ earlier yo talked about the Dynix 16 Q. Now, turning back to your dedaration, to
17 operating system. e Dynix operating system 17 paragraph 12, can you read paragraph 12 into the record f
18 continue 10 exist after D nix/ptx was created, orwas it |18 for me?
19 replaced by Dynix/pb? 19 A. Okay.
20 A. They coexisted, Gradua"y ATRT ultimately | [20 "It was my understanding that the purpose of
21 was successful in their campaign to proselytize the 21 this confidentiality provision from the
22  System V operating envi onment and so more and more | 22 perspective of AT&T Technologies was to .
23  application softwarg wa created for the System V 23 protect the Unix System V source code that it
24 operating environment. L nd although there were new | 24 - was licensing. Although there is reference
25 applications created for | he BSD family of Unixes, they 25 in Section 7.06{a) to 'methods or
| Page 34 . Page 36 i
1 were mostly aimed|at te{:hnical and university-oriented 1 concepts™ — in quotes -- "I had no '
2  markets. ' 2 understanding at the time that AT&T
-3 Sequent continued to sell both Dynix and 3 Technologies was interested in protecting -
4 Dynix/ptx, but as its busjness became more and more 4 anything other than the Unix source code.”
5 commercially oriented, gimed at high-end business 5 Q. 1Is that true and accurater
6 systems and commerdal applications based on databases, | 6 A, Ttis.
7 I'would say the preportipn of Dynix/ptx to Dynlx sales 7 MR. HEISE: Excuse me.
| 8 changed in favor of Dynx/ptx. 8 MR. KAG: Q. Can you -- well, first, can you
9 Q. In paragraph 9, then, of your declaration, are 9 explain to me where you get your understanding of the
10 you referring to Bynix of Dynix/ptx? 10 purpose of Section 7.06(a) of the software agreement?
i1 A.  Actually, both of the products, Dynix and 11 A, From the reading of the document and from the
12 Dynix/ptx, started from the same source base. 1In this 12 conversations with ATAT Technologies folks.
13 paragreph, I'm actually referring to the Dynix, the 13 Q. And whatis it in particular that you base
14 predecessor operating envirenment, but the paragraph 14 your understanding that ATAT Technologies was not
15 applies to both ve ionq‘ of the product, The core of 15 interested in protecting metheds or concepts?
16 the Dynix/ptx opefating system Is also Berkeley derived. |16 A, Actually, there are several things that lead
17 . Tl ask you to review now paragraph 10 of 17 to that understanding. ,
1B vour declaration for yourself, There's na need to read 18 The first is that contemporaneous with this 3
19 that into the rec 19 document and with Sequent's work, AT&T employees and |
20 A. Yes. 20 others were publishing books and generally exposing the
21 Q. Isthata t%e and accurate statement? 21 structure of the Unix operating system. Universities,
22 A, Itis, 22 by this time, had swilched to training young engineers
23 Q. And Tl ask you|aiso to review paragraph 11 23 in software methods using the Unix operating system. 5o |
24 of your declaratio? fo yourself. 24 the notion of protecting the methods or concepts of Unix [
25 A, Okeay. 25 actually was turned on its head. Instead of protecting,
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. Page 37 ] ' Page 39 if
1 they were actually d:xpos ng and proselytizing methods or | 1 Q. Were you involved in negotiating that )
2 concepts because t?hey were trying to build a broad base | 2. agreement? :
3 of technical workers who|were competent in the 3 A. Idon'trecall d;rect involvement. I think it
4 technologies. 4 was probably Michael Simon who did that one.
5 So as a cons queﬁce, it was very clear from 5 Q. And who is Michae| Simon?
& the paragraph and from the conversations that whatthey | 6 A. He was the V.P. of marketing at the time.
7 were mostly interested’ in was just keeping the sourca 7 Q. Do you know what time period that agreement
8 code under conf:rol.; 8 was enterad into? .
9 Q. Didyou ever ask| anybody from AT&T to delete 9 A, 1 have no precise recollection. i
10 that language fromithe spftware agresment? 10 Q. And can you describe for me generally what
11 A. 1did not befause we had an understanding what | 11  that agreement entailed? -
12 it referred to. 12 A. It was baslcally a consulting services
13 Q. Do you know if apybody from your staff ever 13 agreement where Sequent technical resources would be
14 asked anyone from IAT&T to delete the language? 14 applied to development on behalf of AT&T.
15 A. Nottomy khowledge 15 Q. Do you know if any work was ever performed
16 Q. Did anybodft/ in your discussions with AT&T 16 pursuant to that agreement?
17 ever atternpt to define for you what the term "metheds or | 17 A. T believe so, but I don't have direct
18 concepts” means? 18  knowledge.
19 A. It's a pretty|vague term, but I would say an 19 Q. Was that agreement entered into while you were [
20 example of a methdd is how to produce digits for 20 vice president of engineering? !
21 printing from a bingry nymber. 21 A.  Actually, Tthink it was afterI had moved on H
22 And the technigue, of course, is well known. 22 to be CIO or even later.
23 You divide by the b} se. The remainder is the digit to 23 Q. Wwhat did it -- sorry.
24 which you add the Ease of the character. In ASCI], it's 24 Was it executed during a fime that you were
25 60 octal. You take, then, the quotient and divide it 25 overseas, or were you still in Portland?
Page 38 Page 40
1 again by the base, produc ng the next digit, and so on. 1 A. Idon't have a precise recollection.
2 So that's an example of a method where 2 Q. Do you have any recollection of specifically
3 repeated division by fthe base, using the remainder to 3 what technology was involved in that agreement?
4 produce a character|and ysing the quotient to do the 4 A. Only generally, that it related to
5 next digit until it bec',omes zero. 5 multiprocessing.
6 Q. 1s the methad that you described something 6 Q. Turning back to your declaration, ]
7 that's a method from Unix System V, or were you just 7 paragraph 13, can you read paragraph 13 for the record, [
8 giving an example? 8 please? ;
9 A That'scertainly used in Unix System V, but 9 A. Yes. B
10 it's an example of a method that probably goes back to 10 "As I understood the agreement regardlng B
11  the origin of numberfs. Probably the Greeks did it. 11 confidentiality, Sequent had no obligation to
12 Q. With respect to this Section 7.06(a), did you 12 keep confidential any information embedied in %
13 understand AT&T tojbe ajaserting any right to control 13 any of the software products provided to ;
14 methods or concepts contpined in the Dynix software? 14 Sequent, provided that Sequent did not . '
15 MR. HEISE: Objection to form. 15 disclose source code (except as otherwise lE
16 You may answer. Pxcuse me. 16 permitted by the license agreements). In i
17 THE WIT NESE: Certainly not. In fact, the 17 addition, as 1 discuss above, Sequent had no !
18 later agreement thaLwe had with ATRT suggested that 18 obligation to keep confidential any : §
19 they didn't have stich congepts and that they needed 19 modification or derivative work developed by :
20 Sequent to help them develop them., 20 Sequent that did not include . . . System V" i
21 MR. KAO: Q. Can|you tell me what later 21 -- "Unix System V source code. Sequent was %
22 agreement you're rek‘emng to? 22 free to use, copy, distribute or disclose %
23 A. We did a confsulting agreement with AT&T later 23 such modifications and derivative works, :
24 on, where we added somg muitiprocessor enhancements for | 24 provided that it did not copy, distribute or i
25 System V. 25 disclose any portions of the licensed Unix :
T
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1 source code (gxcept as otherwise permitted by 1 became available without restriction to the
2 the license agreements).” ' 2 generat public by acts not attributable to:
3 Q. Are the statemepts that you make in 3 Sequent or its employees.”
4 paragraph 13 of yaur declaration - 4 Q. Are those statements true and accurate —
5 A. Theyare. 5 A. They are.
6. Q - trueand accufate? 6 Q. -- Mr. Rodgers?
7 And again, I'll ask you what you base your 7 Now, the language that you refetred to In
8 understanding of the software agreement on, 8 paragraph 14, is that language contained in
9 A. Again, it's based on a reading of the : 9 Section 7.06{a} of the software agreement that's .
10 agreement and cohversations with AT&T parsonnel at the | 10 attached behind Tab 1 to your declaration?
11 time. . 11 A. Yes,itls.
12 Q. At several Places in your declaration, 12 Q. And can you tell me what your understanding of
13 Including in this paragradph, you say that "except as 13 that language Is based on?
14 otherwise permittéd by the license agreements." 14 A. Yes. The -- in fact, generally; in
15 Do you seejthat? o 15 confidentiality agreements, there are some basic
16 A. Yes,1do, 16 provisions that if the owner of the restricted
17 Q. Whatdo ypu mean by that? 17 information makes it public, say through a public
18 A. There are certain elements that are in the 18 disclosure, or that somecne elise lawfully in possession
13  source code that aictual y have to be reproduced. 19 of that information makes it public or it's
20 1 think a trivial example is the copyright - 20 independently discovered or it's subject to a court
21 notice which is in the squrce code but we're required to 21 order, that that information then becomes free for .
22  reproduce it in vievable form, so . .. 22 disclosure. That was my understanding -- even though
23 Header files are another example of things 23 that language here is vague, that was my understanding
24 that have to be exposed in order to make the operating 24 as to what it meant to be otherwlse accessible,
25 environment usable. 25 Q. Did you have any discussions with anyone at
) Page 42 ‘ Page 44
1 Q. Whatsa lheader flle? 1 ATET specifically about that language?
2 A. It's a source module that contains symbol 2 A. Tdon't recall those discussions. ,
3 definitions. s . 3 Q. If you could ook now at paragraph 15 of your
4 Q. And what do ypu mean by they had to be 4 dedaration.
5 exposed? 5 A. Yes,
6 A Inordertp maITe a program that effectively 6 Q. T ask you to read that into the record.
7 uses the System V calls, you have to have those symbols | 7 And =sgain, take your time for the court reporter.
8 defined for the program. 8 A. Mm-hmm. .
9 Q. And was it your understanding that AT&T 9 “Although I do not recall any particular
10 permitted those Neader files to be disclosed without any | 10 definition being given to the term ‘available
11 restriction? . : ' 11 without restriction to the general public,’
12 A. Yes. They have to be. _ 12 at the time the Software Agreement was
13 Q. Did somebody from AT&T ever tell you that? 13 executed, I believe a number of drcumstances |
14 A. No. It's how it works. 14 would meet the definition. For example, a
15 Q. Let me ask you to tumn to the last page of 15 software product or any part of a software
16  your declaration, gnd I} ask you to read paragraph 14 | 16 product would be considered ‘available
17 into the record. 17 without restriction to the general public’ If
18 A. "The confidentiaiity provision of the 18 it was lawfully published by someone outside
19 Software Agreemeiit provided that Sequent was 19 of Sequent. I believe that any number of
20 not required fo keep a software product 20 books and other materials have been published
21 confidential if it became ‘available without 21 regarding the Unix software, and that the
22 restriction to 'the general public.' As" - 22 information contained in those materials at
23 quoted -- "1 inderstood the agreement, 23 least would not be subject to the -
24 Sequent would be|free to disclose, without 24 confidentiality restrictions in the Software
25 any restrictioh whatsoever, information that 25 Agreement.”
e ' S —
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1 Q. Are the statements that you make in 1 we've been talking about here today? 3
2 paragraph 15 of your declafation true and accurate? 2 A, Until our first contact, I did not,
3 A. Theyare. ' - 3 Q. 1'd like you now just to turn to the software
4 Q. Can you expldin for{ me the circumstances that 4 agreament itself, which is the document behind Tab 1 of
5 you believe would be jconsidered -- well, strike that. 5 your declaration.
6 Can you just ekplain| to me the circumstances 6 A. Yes.
7 that you discuss in your detlaration and how that would 7 Q. And in particular, at Section 2 o0i.
8 make something available without restriction to the 8 A. Okay.
9 general public? ! g Q. And my question to you is whether, in your
10 A. Yes.  As T've said previously, ATAT was on a 10 understanding of Section 2.01, AT&T piaced any
11 marketing campaign, land they were encouraging or perhaps | 11 _restrictions on the use of Sequent’s Dynix source code )
12 allowing a number ofitheir emplayees to publish books, 12 that it wrote on its own?
13 documenting the inngr workings of Unix System V. They 13 " MR. HEISE: Objection to form. ;.
14 were encouraging professors at universities to teach . 14 You may answer. E
15 their students on how to develop and enhanca the Unix 15 THE WITNESS: None that I understood from my - L
16 aperating environment. ) 16 reading or my conversations. My reading of this ; )
17 So In particuiar, I was in possession of a 17 paragraph and my understanding of this paragraph is that [t
18 book at the time that talked a lot about how Unix worked 18 itrelied - or it referred only to the Unix System V i
19" internally. There wefe lotg of books published then and 19 source code that was contributed by ATRT. ;
20 since on how Unix works internally. And at least if you 20 MR. KAD: Q. I'll ask you to look at . ]
21 read the preface, many of those were actually encouraged,, |21 Section 2.05 of this agreement. And my question for you |
22 by ATET Technologle:s 22  is whether you understood Section 2.05 of this agreement |}
23 Q. Doyou remqmber the names of any of the books 23 to place any restrictions on Sequent's use of the Dynix :
24 that you had regardihg Unix? 24 source code that Sequent wrote on its own?
25 A. There are zillions. |The ong I remember 25 A. No, I did not understand this to —
' —
' Page 46 Page 48 |
1 personally is Unix Syste Primer, but - and Iwon't be 1 MR. HEISE: Let me -- ;
2 abletogiveyoua prec:s title, but there was another 2 THE WITNESS: - apply.
3 book I remember that was the Design of the Unix 3 MR. HEISE: -- object to form as well, but — -
4 Qperating System.  That's an approximate title. 4 THE WITNESS: Sotry.
5 Q. Wasthe author f that a guy by the name of 5 MR. HEISE: -- I was a little bit slow on the
6 Maurice Bach or Bach, by any chance? & draw. Thatwas my fault. ’
7 MR. HEISE: | Objgction to form, 7 MR. KAO: Q. Tl ask you to look at
8 THE WITNESS: Yeah, Maury Bach certamly would | 8 Section 4.01 of the agreement.
9  have been one of the authars. g A Yes.
10 MR. KAO: Q. And those are - strike that. Y Q. And my question is whether you understood
1t Do you hav&:: thoge books pursuant to any 11 Section 4.01 to place any restricions on Sequent's
12 Jficense from AT&T? 12 export of any Dynix source code that Sequent wrote on
13 A. No. Those|were freely available. You go to 13 its own.
14 the bookstore. 14 MR. HEISE: The same objection.
15 Q. Did those books, to the extent you remember, 15 You may answer.
16 contain any source code from Unix System V? 16 THE WITNESS: No, Idid not understand this to
17 A. There werg source code fragments in many of 17 apply to Sequent's own source code.
18 the books. : 18 ~ MR.KAO: Q. Let measkyou towm to
19 Q. Are there dny other circumstances that you 19  Section 7.06(2) of the agreement. And ¢an you review
20 believe would meet the definition of "available without 20 that for yourself,
21 restriction to the general public,” sitting here today? 21 A Yes.
22 A. Certainly a'public announcement would qualify 22 Okay., :
23 asavailable to the.genefal public. 23 Q. And my guestion is whether you understood
24 Q. Now, after - affer leaving Sequent, did you 24 Section 7.06(a) to place any restrictions on Sequent's
25 have the occasion to ever review these agreements that 125 ability to disclose Dynix source code that Sequent wrote |
12 (Pages 45to 48) i
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Page 51§
1 onitsown. 1 Q. Do you know which agency within the govemment
2 MR. HEISE: Objection; form. 2 issued POSIX standards?
3 You may amswer. ' 3 A. Iden't, at this moment in time, remember who
4 THE Wl'l'NE{SS Again, no, I did not.understand 4 wasdoing it. It was probably Cornmerce, but T don't
5 this to apply to the Sequent source coda., 5  know.
6 MR. KAQ: Q. And finally, I'l have you look 6 Q. Wasthere an independgnt -~ was it actually a
7 at Section 7.10 to the software agreement, 7 government agency, or was it some-sart of jolnt, you
8 A. Okay. o 8 know, independent -- joint govermment and commercial
9 Q. And my question is whether you understood. 5  body? Do you know? :
10 Section7.10to re#trict Sequent's ability to sell, 10 A. Like a laf of these standards activities,
11 lease, or otherwisd;a transfer or dispose of any Dynix 1i there are contributors and hangers-on and authorizers '
12 source code that Sequent wrote on Its own. 12 and sponsors. And so it was government—sponsored
13 MR. HEISE} Same ob]ectlon 13 contiibuted-to-by-private-sector activity. .
14 You may adwswer. 14 . And [ think you mentioned POSIX compliance
15 THE WITNESS: [No, This, in particular, would 15 before. What does it mean to be compliant with POSIX?
16 havebeen crazy if I had interpreted It as applying to 16 A. To comply with the POSIX standard, you have to
17 the Seqguent sourde code, because that was the --one of |17 implement the system program interface, the a pplicaﬁ_o_n
18 the key assets of the company. To bind a key asset 18 programming interface, and the system calls in a
19 would have required a board decision. 19 specific way so that the applications run the way
20 MR. KAD: Fan we go off the record? o |20 they're expected to run and that there are no unexpected
21 THE VIDEQGRAPHER: Going off the record. The )21 side effects of the way it's implemented.
22 time is 9:08. , 22 Q. While you were employed at Sequent, did
23 (Recess taken.) 23. Sequent ever, to your knowledge, disclose any Unix
24 THE VIDEQGRAPHER: Wé are back ontherecord, | 24 System V source code without-permission?
25 The timeis 9:31. 25 A. Nottomy knowledge.
. Page 50 Page 52
1 MR. KAO: 0. 1justhave a few remaining 1 Q. Did Sequent ever export any Unix System V
2 questions foryou, Mr. Rodgers. And ycu might as well 2 source code without permission?
3 pretend like I'm sitting qver there -- 3 A. Not to my knowledge.
4 A. Okay. 4 Q. Did Sequent ever transfer -- well, let me ask
5 Q. -- sothe video will look alf right. 5 it this way: Did Sequent ever sell, lease, or otherwise
6 A. Al right. 6 transfer or dispose of any Unix System V source code
7 Q. First questjon for you is, you referred ta 7  without permission? '
B 'Dynix/ptx in your testimony earlier. And I was curious 8 A. Not to my knowledge.
9 o know what it is that "lptx” stands for, - 9 G. Did Sequent ever allow any other entities to
10 A. Phxis kind}of a tweak on POSIX. The 10 use Unix System V source code without permission?
11 govemnment was promulgating scme standards for Unix at | 11 A. Not to my knowledge.
12 the time under the rubric of POSIX, which I think was 12 Q. Did Sequent ever use Unix System V source code
13 also known as PI][O‘B, or something like that, at the 13 in any way that was not permitted by its license with
14 time. Inany case, “psx,” which was a more obvious 14 AT&T?
15 reference to POSIX, wasn't available; so we settled on 15 A. Notto-
i6 "pikx" as the referance to POSIX compliance. And that 16 MR. HEISE: Objection to form.
17 was togive us some mare credibility in government 17 ‘You may answer,
18 sales. ' 18 THE WITNESS: Not to my knowledge.
19 Q. What is POSIX? 15 MR. KAQ: That's all 1 have,
20 A. POSIX is a government standard for Unix 20 EXAMINATION BY MR. HEISE
21 application prografmming interfaces. It's - there are, 21 MR. HEISE: Q. Good morning, Mr. Rodgers.
22 as you probably kfow, a Iot of government standards 22 . A Good morming.
23 designed to im prove the portability and the 23 Q. As I mentioned earlier, I'm Mark Heise, .
24 cost-effectiveness,of goyernment procurements, and POSIX | 24 representing The SCC Group in this case. And as Mr. Kao [k
25 is one of those stalndards relating to Unix. ' - 125 mentioned, to the extent T ask you a question that is 1
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4 1 undeartoyouorl niumbf or do something to prevent | 1 name was, I think, Mike McDonald but that's nat -- 1
2 you from answering, |Just lease let me know. Tl be 2 don't recall his name.
3 glad to rephrase it of try gnd accornmodate your 3 3. Is he herein San Jose of Saratoga?
4 concems, 4 A. Yes, he'sin San Jose. -
5 You and 1 hawe ne{ler met before; is that 5 Q. Interms of your professional background after . §;
6 correct? { 6 you graduated from coilege, you indicated that you began |
7 A. That's correct 7 at Digital Equipment Corporation in approximately 1973.
8 Q. AndIwant tp essentially follow the same 8 A. That's right. i
9 format that you did ith.the lawyer for IBM. I'm going g Q. From the time that you graduated in 1968 up
10 to go through some of your personal history and then go | 10 unti} 1973, how were you employed? :
11 through some of the' statements that you made in the 11 A. T was employed by Carnegle-Mellon Umvers;ty, :
12 affidavit. 12 in the computer science. . :
13 The address that ou gave us earfier in 13 (). Thatf's right. You mentioned that. :
14 Saratoga, is that your home or office address? 14 A. Right,
15 A. That's my hdme’. . 15 Q. Iforgot
i6 Q. What is your office address? ' 16 As your employment at Carnegie—Mellon did you
17 A. 1t's 475 Sycamore, 5-y-c-a-m-o-r-, Drive in 17 have any involvement whatsoever with licensing of any
18 Milpitas, California. 18 type at Carnegie-Mellon?
19 Q. And that's for IP Unity? 19 A. Idont recail doing any.
20 A. That's IP Unjty. 20 Q. How about with Digital Equipment Corporation?
21 Q. Doyou currfent]y wn any stock in IBM? 21 What was your position there?
22 A. Imay, My persomal investment advisers invest |22 A. My position was as a development engineer and
23 In mutual funds, and so from time to time I may. 23 later as a development manager, and it was a series of
24 Q. Other than t pasgible investment in a mutual 24 engineering jobs.
25 fund, you don't owr? individual shares of IBM? 25 Q. So in those engineering jobs, did your
L Page 54 Page 56 |1
1 A, Correct. 1 position require you to review or execute licenses on '
2 Q. With respedt to some of your personal history, 2 behalf of Digital?
3 you know, 1 have tg ask these questions. Have you ever | 3 A. No. )
4 been arrested? 4 Q. When you went to Sequent in approximately
3 A. No. : 5 1983, I think you indicated for us that you were there §
6 Q. Have you elver been convicted of any crime? 6 asthevice president of engineering from approximately
7 A No. 7 1983 1to 1991, Is that correct?
8 Q. You menthned that you were in an automaobile 8 A. Iwasn'tV.P. of engineering that whole time, .
9 acddent in 2001. 9 but I was V.P. of engineering initially and then in a
10 A. Yes. ! i0 variety of other roles untii I teft the company. '
11 Q. Were you the plaintiff in that case or the 1 Q. Okay. Then I misunderstood, then.
12 defendant in that case? i2 If we could, if you could just track for us
13 A.  1was the defendant. 13 your roles, because what I -- this is what I understood,
14 Q. And you sdid it Ultimately — 14 and maybe it's high level enough to be accurate.
15 A, Settled. ‘ 13 ) Vice president of engineering from 1983 to
16 Q. - settled. . 16 1991, chief information offlcer in Eurdpe from '91 to
17 What was the name of the plaintiff in that 17 '93, and then head of professional services from
18 case? . 18 approximately 1993 to 1996.
13 A His last name is Kitikoon. I don't recall his 19 A. The misunderstanding is that from about ‘88 to
20 first name. ' 20 '91, I was CIQ; '91 10 '93, 1 was in Europe as the --
21 Q. Do you haye a dopy of the deposition that you 21 Q. Okay.
22 gave in that case? | 22 A. -- European engineering manager.
23 A. Idonot. _ 23 Q. Thank you for correcting that.
24 Q. Who was j‘our lawyer in that case? 24 In your role as vice president of engineering
25 A. It was the insurance company lawyer, and his 25 from '83 to approximately '88, did you execute any
J
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Page 59 [¢
1 software license agreements other than the ones that 1 MR. KAO: Objection to form. '
2 we've talked about this moming? . 2 MR. HEISE: Q. You may answer.
3 A. Yes. I'm sue wel licensed a variety of tools 3 MR. KAO: You cananswer.
4 and other technology for|engineering. 4 - THE WITNESS: QOkay. Sorry,
5 Q. What companies would you have executed license | 5 In the case of that license agreement, I had
6 agreements o behalf of Sequent during that time frame? } 6 more involvement perhaps because it was a major piece of |
7 A. I don't recall specific names at this point in 7 function, but it cerinly wasn't necessary thatI be
8 time, but we would have|had license agreements with -1 | 8  the person executing.
9  an't think of the name ¢f the company - with a 9 MR. HEISE: Q. And the reason I'm asking is,
10 compiier company that I|think was calied Green River. 10 you indicated earfier that you did not persona iy
11 Software or something like that. Inany case, itwas a 11 negotiate any of the terms.
12 Bay Area company that Had compiler technology that we | |12 A. Right.
13 used. We had some license agreements for some test 13 Q. And so I was wondering why the person who did
14 tools. We had some license agreements with Mentar 14 negotiate the terms was not that. And it seems to be
15 Graphics for the computer-aided design workstations. We |15 that you're telling us that it just happened that you
16 had -- I'm trying to think what else, 16 were the person that would have been in town that day to
17 In any case, the hulk of the iicense 17 sign the agreement,
18 agreements were for engineering tools, and then there 18 A. Itwas probably --
19 were a couple of license pgreements that were for 15 MR. KAQ: Objection to form. .
20 software that was passed through to the customer, @ | {20 Give me a chance to object, but you can answer
21 Fortran compiler, a C compiier, and s0 on. 21 the question. ‘ .
22 Q. Could you tell us|or give us an approximation 22 THE WITNESS: Okay. It was probably a little
23 of the number of lidenses? Are we talking about four or | 23 more than that, because it was a technical issue. But
24 five? Are we talking about 40 or 507 Just - 24 yeah, it would have been one of the executives who was
25 A. Oh, it's notin the tens. It's going to be 25 executing on the recom mendation of the director of
Page 58 ) Page 60 [
i countable on the fingers of two ha nds. 1 software engineering. ' :
2 Q.- Ckay. Were you|the person that was assigned 2 MR. HEISE: Q. And the director of software
3 toexecute all of these licenses, or wa s there somebody 3 engineering, I've already forgotten his name and you've
4 else in the company that|was also involved at the 4 said it three times.
S execution level? _ 5 A. Roger Swanson,
6 A. Itwas certainly a matter of convenience, b Q. Okay. What was the process that Sequent would
7 whoever — whatever executive was around at the time 7 follow when it would Ficense? And just to give you an 1
§ thatthe license agreement needed to be signed. Isawa 8 idea of what I'm talking about, would it be done by
9 ot of them, but certainly not every one of them. 9 committee headed by Roger Swanson? He would meet with
10 Q. Was there a parson at Sequent that was 10 all of you? Would it go to the legal department? Just, |
11 designated to negotiate the licenses on behaff of 11 if you could, walk us through the steps of Sequent wants
12 Sequent, whether It be with A TRT or Mentor Graphics or 12 to license X product. How does Sequent go about domg
13 any of these test tobl companies? 13 that during the time that you were there?
14 A. Again, it wauld depend & little on what the 14 A. Okay. First, there's a difference between
15 nature of it was. So, for instance, Roger Swanson, who 15 licensing a product for internal use and licensing a
16 was the director of software engineering, did a lot of 16 product for incorporation in resale,
17 the software licenses, spedfica lly the compilers and 17 And so for internal use, they were Iargely i
18 the source code licenses.| Walt Mayberry would have done | 18  standard form licenses: negotiate the best price you ‘
19 the hardware licenses and -- the hardware design tool 19  can for as few seats as you can buy and get on with it. .
20 licenses. But agsin, it was a small company, so it was 20 So there wasn't a lot of negotiating.
21 whoever was in town at the fime. 21 in the case of a product for resale, as it
22 Q. Isthat how it ended up that you signed on 22 would have been for the compilers or operating system
23 behalf of Sequent? You happened to be in town as 23 components, again there would be a cost censideration. <
24 opposed to some of the other engineers that had the 24 Is there an appropriate royaity that's not unsustainable
25 authority to sign? 25 from a commerdal perspective? Are the licensing terms
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1 falr, meaning there's ng undue restriction on the 1 farguage - §
2 ability to distribute, for example? ' 2 Q. Right. _ f
3 And then whoever happened to be the subject 3 A, --thathumanscan mterpret that gives them f
4 matter expert -- in the ¢ase of most of the software, it 4 control over what algorithm is being executed.
5 was Roger - would proceed to engage with whoeverwas | 5 The source code form often will be larger than
6 the source of the technglogy and come to a draft 6 the binary code form. The source code form almost
7 agreement. We'd reatt’fit over, have a discussion with ~- 7 always will have a layer of abstraction like a library
8 tosee if we could move them around a little bit, if 8 between itand the binary code form.
9 that was necessary, and then executed the document. 9 Q. And so if we were to look at the binary forrn,
10 Q. Sointhe case - 10 it would just appear as a series of 1s and 0s?
11 A. There wasn'ta q:orporate counsel to respond to 11 A, That's correct,
12 the question. | - 12 Q. After your tenure as the vice president of
13 Q. Ckay. Soin th% case of an agreement for 13 engineering at Sequent, during which time you executed
14  internal use — which you understood the Unix System V| 14-  these agreemients, for the remainder of your time at
15 agreement to be for internal purposes only; right? 15 Sequent, either as the chief information officer or head
16 ‘A, Itvaried at différent moments in time. The 16 of professional services, did you have any involvement
17 initial agreement was for internal use, It was to get 17 in executing any other licenses ot beha If of Sequent?
18 access to the source coge — i8 A_ Certainly as the CIQ, 1 executed license
19 Q. Correct. 19 agreements for software for internal use. We used
20 A. -- 50 that we couid put a System V face on the 20 Oracle extensively. There were a number of accounting i
21 Dynix operating system 21 programs and other programs that we used, . i3
22 "At the point in time when there was a 22 As professional services head, 1 don't recall
23 derivative work prepared and it was ready for sale, then |23 executing any license agreements. I might have done one f;
24 we executed the next agreement, which was fo give us 24 with respect to -- with Lotus Corporation with respect
25 distribution rights for that. 25 to Notes, but I don't have a spedific recollection of
. Page 62 . Page 64 |}
1 Q. Just so that welre clear on the record, what 1 that
2 - you're referring tq is inftially what was executed for 2 Q. Again, in terms of these other licenses,
3 internal business purpdses only was Exhibit 1 to 3 Oracle or Lotus that were for internal business |E
4 Exhibit 100, the spftware agreement? 4  purposes, can we count those on a hand or two or are f
-5 A. That's correct. , 5 those in the dozens? {
6 Q. And then, when you were ready to distribute ) A. Still small numbers. i
7 the derivative work, it was based upon entering into 7 Q. Okay. I;
8 Exhibit 2 to Exhiblt 100; is that correct? 8 A. Yes, :
] A, That's correct. 9 Q. After you left Sequent in approximately 1996, {
10 Q. Okay. When you entered into Exhibit 2, the 10 you said you went to Compagq Corporation? .
11 sublicensing agreement to Exhibit 100, that was to allow |11 A. That's right.
12 Sequent to distribute in binary form only; is that 1z Q. As the vice president of busmess
13 correct? . 13 applications, did you have any responsibility for i
14 A. That's correct. 14  executing licenses on behalf of Compaq7 i
15 Q. And so that we ali understand, binary form is 15 A, No.
16 different than source form; is that correct? 16 Q. How about during your tenure at Brightiink?
17 A:. That's correct. 17 Did you have any responsibility for negetiating or
18 Q. Could you tell lis the difference between 18 executing license agreements on behalf of Brightlink? i
19 source code versus Bingry or abject code? 19 A. Yes. Again, it would have been engineering |
20 A, Right. Atthe t-thest level, source code is 20 tools, :
21 human readable and binary code is machine readable or |21 Q. So not for internal business purposes? The :
22 computer executable, Spedfically, the binary form will | 22 other type of -- _ ‘
23 be a highly encoded representation of the detailed 23 .A. Correct.
24  instructions for whatever the program is, and the source |24 Q. - contracts? ‘ ;
25 code will be a represeriftation in something close to a 25 And how about at IP Unity? Do you have any §
|
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1 involvement in the execution or negoti'ation of license i processing. ]
2 agreements? 2 At some point in ime, it became necessary to
3 A, Yes, ) 3 expand the base of application soffware that was
4 Q. And are those for internal use gnly license 4 available for the platform.in order to expand sales, and.
5 agreements or for the todls and the like? 5 this was a time when the applications were belng written
6 A. Both types.~ ' - 6 for a number of variants of Unix, but the most prominent
4 7 Q. Of the companies other than Sequent, which 7 ones were the Berkeley variant and the System V variant,
8 we're obviously discussing this morning, have you 8 And so we sought to license System V technolagy from
9 executed or been involved in the negotiation of any 9 AT&T in order to add that second flavor, that second
10 license agreements with |AT&T or any of its successors |10 body of application code. .
11 for Unix System V code? 11 So we -- Roger engaged with someone at AT&T.
12 A. Not ta my recoliection. : 12 I don't actually recall how we got to find out who wauld
13 Q. You had indicated earlier that you met with 13- do the licensing. And we executed the source agreement,
14 Mr. Kao, the lawyer for IBM, sometime in 2003. Is that | 14 which is this Exhibit 1; started working on if; :
15 correct?. L 15 developed a first version of the Dynix operating system
16 A. Tdon'trecall theexact date, but T've met 16 that had a so-called System V persanality. And
17 with Mr. Kao two times before today. 17 internally, we referred to it as "the oil slick” because
18 Q. Okay. Let's -- if jyou could, sir, tell us the 18 that was about how much difference there was. And we
19 first time that you met with Mr. Kao. 19 went to market with that, and that was adequate t©
20 MR. KAD: Again, I'd caution the witness not 20 secure some additional applications. .
21 toreveal any attorney-c|/ient communications, but you {21 Dver time, as POSIX and AT&T's marketing ™ .
22  are able to answer Mr. Heise's question here. 22 program were successful, there were more applications
23 THE WITNESS: Okay. After the preparation of |23  available for the System V API variant, and sa we needed
24  my document here, I had the occasion to meet with 24 to make a more faithful expression of the System V
25 Mr. Kao here In San Jese; and basically, we just 25 system calls, and so that was the -- when we started
i‘ Fage &6 . Page 68 |
1 reviewed the content of the document and confirmed that | 1 building and marketing the Dynix/ptx variant. Continued ‘
2 itwas an accurate statement of my recollection. 2 to market both versions of the software,
3 MR. HEISE: Q. Okay. I may have used a word 3 Eventually -- there were several platform
4 that unnecessarily conf your answer, so let mejust . | 4 changes during this time, first going from a National
5 ‘lake aone step back. When is the first time you had any 5 Semiconductor 32-bit -- 16-bit micro to a 32-bit micro
6 contact with anybody on behalf of IBM? 6 toan Intel 386-based product to an Intel 486-based
7 A. Okay. That would have been in 2003. Itwasa 7 product; and ultimately, very dose to the end of my
8 phone call. Again, I donlt recall whether it was B employment at Sequent, we started warking an distributed
9 Mr, Kao or someone eise from his office who made the S coherent cache architecture that was an opportunity to
10 initial contact, but it was a phone call asking me if I 10 scale up the number of processors that could be putin a
11 was the guy who signed|the document. 11 shared memory architecture.,
12 Q. Was anything eise discussed in that first 12 MR. KAO: Could we go off the record for one
13 phone call? 13 second? ) _
14 A. Again, I don't have a precise recollection; 14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the record. The
15 but I probably, in the first phone call, recounted the 15  time is 9:56. :
16 general sequence of events, 16 {Discussion off the record.) : i
17 Q. Okay. And in that first phone call, could you 17 THE VIDEQGRAPHER: We're back on the record. ;
18 recount for us the genefal sequence of events that ook |18 This marks the end of Tape No. 1 in the i
13 place at that point? 19 depasition of David Rodgers. We're going off the i
20 A. Yes, The history of Sequent is that it 20 record. The time is 9:57. 1
21 started off building a multimicroprocessor hardware 21 {Recess ta ken.) _ E
22 platform running the Unix operating system, and it chose |22 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the record. i‘
23 the Unix Berkeley Standard Distribution as the source 23 This m arks the beginning of Tape No. 2 in the
24 besis for that operating [system. Its innovations were 24 deposition of David Rodgers. The time is 10 o'clock. :
25 in the area of symmetric multiprocessing and parallel 25 MR. KAOQ: For the record, Mr. Rodgers just 5
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1 testified as to communicgtions he had with either myself 1 correspondence from the time of that initial phone call ”
2 or somebody at my law firm before we agreed o represent 2 and the time that 1BM's attorneys came and met you here a
3 Mr. Rodgers. 3 in San Jose, California? H
4 Mr. Rodgers infermed me at break that he 4 A. None that I recall. 1 mean, possibly one to i
5 wasn't sure if he actuallylhad those discussions with me 5 organize the meeting, but. .. f
6- or with somebody else before or after, SoIdon't 6 Q. At that second meeting, who was In attendance? ' :
| 7 intend his testimony to be a waiver -- to constitute a 7 A. Myself and Mr. Kap. a
8. waiver of the attorney-client privilege to the extent 8 Q. Nobody else? . Z
9 that those discussions happened after we agreed to 9 A. Right. ‘ %
10 represent him. , 10 Q.. Was that at your home or your office? §
11 MR. HEISE: Q. When I was asking you the 11 A. Actually, it was here in San Jose, but I don't );
12 guestion, this was all what I understood was in the 12 recall where it was. i
13 first phone conversation.| So that's where I'm limiting 13 Q. Besides the three exhibits that were attached ;‘»
14 my questions to right now. 14 to Exhibit 100, were you shown anything else at that E
15 A. Okay. SoI've misled you. Describing things 15 second meeting?
16 that happened in a series of conversations and the first 16 MR. KAQ: And here, at that meeting, we agreed [
17 meeting. ) 17 to represent Mr. Rodgers. So I'm going to instruct the ;
18 Q. Okay. Then let me make sure that we're all 18 witness not to answer that. And I -- '
19 . perfectly clear on the record. 19 MR. HEISE: Well, let me -~ 5
20 Y ou indicated you got a phone call from 20 MR, KAO: The fact that the exhibits were t
21 somebody at IBM's counre!'s office, asking if you are n |21 disdosed, 1 also would not -- you know, Twould liketo - |
22 the David Rodgers that signed the agreement. 22 siste that's not intended to waive the privilege.
23 A. Yes, 23 MR. HEISE: Well, then let me just explore i
24 Q. You indicated that in that conversation, other 24 this for just one moment.
25 matters were discussed. |And so I thought you had 25 Q. During your first meeting with IBM's attorneys
: oo Page 70 Page 72
1 indicated you talked about the history of Sequent in 1 herein San Jose, California, did a pomt in fime — at
2 thatinitial conversation gnd that's what you just 2 what point in ime during that meeting was there a
3 provided to us. Is that correct? 3 discussion about 1BM's attorneys representing you? -
4 A. Yes, . 4 A. Sometime during the meeting. I don't recall
5 Q. What else was discussed in that first 5 whether it came up at the beginning or, you know, after
6 conversation when you were contacted by IBM's attomeys? | 6  the pleasantries, but sometime during that meeting.
7 A. Idon't have a precise recollection, but 7 Q. Was there ever a point in time in which you
8 probably I was asked wauld I be willing to docum ent my 8 have signed or -- scratch that.
9 recofiection. - g Was there ever a polnt In time when you had a
10 Q. Was anything eise dlscussed dunng that first 10 written agreement that IBM's attomeys were going to
11 conversation? 11 represent you?
12 A. No. 12 A. No.
13 Q. Did you take any notes from that first 13 Q. Have you had discussions about thern
14 conversation? 14 representing you? Llet me - i
15 A. Ididnot. 15 A, Unclear.
16 Q. Did you preparejany -- any documentation as a 16 Q. Let me put that back into English. ?
17  result of that first conversation, specifically in 17 You do not have a written agreement with !
18 response to the request of would y ou document what took | 18  anybody representing 1BM in this case --
19 place? 19 A, That's correct.
20 A. 1didnot. 20 Q. — to be your attorney?
21 Q. When was khe next time you had any contadt 21 A, That's correct,
22 with anybody from IBM's attorneys' offices? 22 Q. would it be fair, then, to say that the
23 A. Imet with Mr. Kao here in $an Jose, and that 23 agreement that IBM's attorneys represent you is only
24 was my opportunity to see the -- these exhibits. 24 oral?
25 Q. Were there any pther discussions, phone calls, 25 A. That's correct,
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1 Q. And you don't recall what was said in this 1 A. I purge them every two or three months SR
2 meeting with Mr. Xao hefore you came to this oral 2 Q. Do you know whether you've purged the e-mails
3 understanding of the fact that IBM's attorneys were 3 going back and forth between you and the lawyers for E
4 guing {0 also represent you in this case? 4 IBM? 8
5 A. No. As] sald, we might have exchanged 5 A. Not definiively. f
6 pleasantries or something. 6 Q. Can you agree not to purge any of the e-mails i
7 Q. How lohg was the meeting? 7 that go between you and IBM's attbrneys until this case 5
8 A. Maybe an hour . 8 has been resolved? , B
9 Q. After that meefing, when was the next contact 9 A. Well, depends on when that is. ’ 4
10 you had by anyone who was also représenting IBM ip this | 10 Q. Certainly for the next 12 months, so that in f
11 case? 11 the event we need to see them, they won't be made more i
12 A. There was a later phene call. 1don't have a 12 difficult to retrieve by going to archives and all that? 'E
13 precise recoilection as fo time. i3 A. T can't agree to keep therm on-line. That's
14 Q. With whom? 14 what I have to do to maintain the integrity of my :
15 A, Tthink it was with Mr. Kao. And my 15 e-mail. What I can do is agree to preserve them in some [i
16 recollection is it was just “Are you available to give a 16 machine-readable form. IE
17 deposition?” _ 17 Q. That would te fine. 1
18 Q. Approxdmately when would that phone call have | 18 When you got the first draft of this B i
19 been? 18 declaration prepared by IBM's attorneys, you indicated
20 A. Actually, let me correct myself, The next + |20 you had made some changes to it and sent those back.
21 contact would have bepn to discuss the review of a draft | 21 A, Yes, i
22 dedaration and then, gfter that, it would have been to 22 2. What changes were made to it?
23 discuss my willingness|to give a deposition. 23 A, Don't have a precise recollection, 1 think
24 . Q. Okay. Inlooking at your Exhibit 100, this 24 there were 2 nimber of Incorrect references to Dynix and |;
25 . declaration that you signed, it indicates that it was 25 Unix System V. I think there was one statement that {
Page 74 Page 76 F
1 signed on November 5th, 2003. 1 just seémed awkwardly put. 1t was substantively’
2 A. Yes, - 2 accurate, but it wasn't technically accurate.
3 Q. Isthat when, in fact, it was signed? 3 Q. Was there anything from your first phone call
4 A, Yes. o 4 that was not included in the declaration that was
5 Q. 5o using Novernber 5th, 2003 as a date of which 5 - ultimately prepared by IBM's attorneys?
6 we are certain, how fan before that was your first 6 A, Notto my recall, but , . .
7 contact by phone with Mr. Kao and then your meetmg with | 7 Q. How many times was there a back-and-forth of
8 Mr. Kao? Canyou tell us that? 8 changing this declaration before you signed it on -
g A. I have no recollection. 9 November 5th, 2003?
10 Q. Was it within days? Weeks? Months? 10 A. Irecall enly one update, one edit.
11 A. Twould guess that it's more a span of weeks. 11 Q. After November 5th, 2003, when you signed the
12 Q. From the ime that you said -- excuse me -- 12 declaration prepared by IBM's attomeys, did you have
13 Mr. Kao and you met ahd the declaration was prepared, 13 any further contact with anybody representing IBM in
14 did you prepare the detlaration during that time frame? 14  this case?
15 A. No. Igave the fact statements, and then the 15 MR. KAD: Again, I'l caution the witness to
16 declaration was prepared by someone in Mr. Kao's office 16 limit the answer to whether you had contact and not what
17 and delivered to me -- | think it was delivered 17 the substance of the communications were,
1B elecironically -- for review. I marked it up. 18 THE WITNESS: And your que_stion is between
19 Q. When you sav ["elactronically,” you mean as an 19 November 5th and now?
20 attachment to an e-mail? 20 MR. HEISE: Q. As we sit here today, correct.
21 A. Yes. T 21 A. Yes.
22 Q. Do you maint2in your sent or deleted e- mails? 22 . Q. Okay. When was the next contact after you
23 A. For a period of time. 23 executed this declaration, Novemnber 5th, 2003, that you
24 Q. Dothey become automatically deleted, or do 24 had contact with the lawyers for IBM? ;-
25 ' 25 A. Sometime earlier this year I was contacted,

you have to manually permanently delete them?
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1 asking if I was available. |- 1 Q. When's the last time that you had contact with ‘
2 MR. KAO: Imean| agzin, 1 don'tintend that 2 Mr. Swanson?
3 tobe a waiver of the attorney-dlient privilege, 1 3 A. It's been yeays. :
4 think Mr. Heise was just asking -~ you are allowed to 4 Q. In preparation to give your deposition today, ]
5 tell Mr, Heise the accasions on which you were 5 have you taken any steps? ' '
6 contacted - 6 MR. KAQ: Again, I would -~
7 " THE WITNESS: "I see. o 7 THE WITNESS: Idon't understand the questfon
B MR. KAO: ~ and how often and the dates, to 8 MR. HEISE: Q. Have you done anything to
9 the extent you can remember them, but Iinstruct you not | 9 prepare yourself for today's deposition? i
10 to disclose the content of any communications between | 10 MR. KAQ: And again, I would instruct the ‘
11 you and myself, 11 witness, to the extent it discloses any attorney-client
12 MR. HEISE: Q. 5o sometime in 2004 you were 12  communications, that you not answer the question. . .
13 contacted again by -~ : 13 THE WITNESS: I read the document.
14 . A Yes. : 14 MR. HEISE: Q. Have you reviewed anything
15 Q. -- IBM's attorneys? 15 other than the Exhibit 100 with its attachments?
16 And was that telephone or in person? ' 16 MR. KAO: I'm gaing to instruct the witness
17 A, Telephone, © |17 not to answer the question.
i8 Q. How long was that conversation, approximately? | 18 MR. HEISE: On what basis?
19 A. Would have been a short conversation, 19 MR. KAD: On the basls of attorney-client
20 Q. After that short telephone conversation, did 20 privilege.
21 you have any further contact with IBM's attomeys? 21 MR. HEISE: Q. Have you had conversatlons :
22 A Yes. 22 with anyone other than your attorney - - i
23 Q. ‘When was that? : 23 MR. KAQ: The same position you guys took _
24 A. Relatively recently. It would have been in 124 MR. HEISE: Q. -- about your depaosition ;
425 the last month. 25 today? :
i Page 78 " Page B0 2
1 Q. Was that in perspn or by telephone? 1 A, 1told my father I was going to do it. t
2 A. By telephone. 2 Q. Have you talked with anybody who is a witness i
3 Q. Okay. Was that plso a short telephone 3 in this case or a potential witness In this case? i
4 conversation, or was that a -- , 4 A. Idon't think so. I supposa that's possible.
5 A. Basically a short call, ' 15 Q. For example, you didn't talk to Mr. Swanson"
6 Q. After that phone|conversation, did you have 6 A. Thave not.
7 any other contact with anybody representing 18M? 7 Q. You just said you hadn't tatked to him in
8 A. Yes. 8 years So that's what I'm trying to get at, is whether
g9 Q. When was that? 9 you've talked to anybody, if you've talked to
10 A. Yesterday. 10 Mr. Wilson, who you said --
11 Q. Was that in person or by phone? 11 A. No.
12 A, It was in parson with Mr, Kao. 12 Q. -- signed this agreement and that sort of
13 Q. How long was your meeting -- how long was your | 13 thing. Okay.
14 meeting with Mr. Kao yesterday? 14 During the time that you were at Sequent, who
15 A. Notincduding lunch, about an hour. 15 else besides Mr. Swanson was involved in the
16 Q. Did you meet today before your deposition? 16 negotiations, discussions, or execution of the' license [
17 A. Briefly. : : 17 for the Unix System V software that's attached to your
18 Q. You indicated that Roger Swanson was the 18 declaration? %
19 director of software at Sequent. 19 A. Idon't have a precise recollection. 1It's d
20 A. That's correct. ' 20 possible that any number of people were. And it's :
21 9. Do you know where he is currently? 21 certainly likely that we would have discussed the
22 A. I believe that he|resides in either Portand 22 agreement at the executive staff meetings, but astc |
23 or Beaverton, Qregon. 23 negotiations, I think it was probably only Roger anda |3
24 Q. Do you know where he's employed? 24 couple of the other staff members wha I've mentioned 4
25 A 1don't know. 25 before. ;
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1 Q. Was there anybody that would be, inyourmind, | 1 attorney-client privilege. ‘
2 the person who was the lead negotiator on behalf of 2 MR. KAO: Yesh. Unless I instruct you not to
3 Sequent since, as you've indicated, you had no personal | 3 answer, you can still answer the question. :
4 contact with AT&T? 4 THE WITNESS: It wasn't - [ would say except
5 MR. KAD; IObJecton mlscharactenzes the 5 for price, it wasn't about the language. It was -- and
6 witness's testimony.- 6 afl of the discussions about 1ntent or meaning were -
7 MR. HEISE: Q. |Okay., You can answer the 7 oral
8 gquestion. 8 MR. HEISE: Q. Ckay. And that's -- I'm just
5 A. Roger s the Iead negotiator, was the lead 9 trying to make sure we're very clear on this.
10 negotiator. 1 was certajnly on phone calls with AT&T 10 ATRT said, "Here's the agreement." No terms
11 personnel at various paints in time, 11 are negotiated, changed in any way, ather than
12 Q. Did you participate, or were you just - 12 discussions of price?
13 [listening? . 13 MR. KAD: Objection ta form.
14 A. Be hard ta imagine me not participating. 14 THE WITNESS: 1 don't think it was that
15 Q. Okay. Who at AT&T was on these phone calls? |15 heavy-handed. I mean, I think they said, "We want to
16 A, That, I doh't have a precise recollection of, 16 recruit you as a System V licensee. Is there anything
17 As Isaid, I don't think it was Mr. Wilson, and I don't 17 here that gives you particular heartburn?”
18 remember the name of|the lead guy on the AT&T side. | 18 But it wasn't -- you know, it wasn't like,
19 Q. Was it just one|person from AT&T? 19 "Let's start drafting from the first paragraph.”
20 A. There's certainly one person with whom we 20 MR. HEISE: Q. Okay. And when you were asked
21  worked most frequently, but I recall that there were 21 something along the lines of "Is there anything here .
22 other peopie involved in the process. 22 that gives you particular heartbum?" if there was
23 Q. What do you mean by that, others invoived in = |23  anything, none of those terms were changed from the
24 the process? ‘ 24 standard agreement?
25 A. Preparing the drafts and transmitting the 25 A. Notthat ] recall. -It was a pretty benign
Page 82 " Page 84
1 documents, things fike that. 1 agreement.
2 'Q. When you say preparing the drafts,” what 2 Q. If you could, sir, just at a general level of
3 drafts are you referring to? 3 what you've described as 2 benign agreement, this
4 A. The drafts of this license agreement. 4 Exhibit 1, the software agreement, what is your
5 Q. Well, Sequent didn't prepare those drafts. 5 understanding as to what it provided to Sequent?
6 A, That's correct. | They were prepared by AT&T. 6 A. You're speaking just of the first agreement? i
7 Q. So I thought from your-testimony before you 7 Q. Just to the first agreement. LB
8 indicated that this wasa -- you had been told this was 8 A. The first agreement provides Sequent with k
9 astandard form agreement - 9 access o the ATRT System V source code for its mternal
10 A, Yes. i0 use, and that internal use was preparation of a i
11 Q. --and that you had to sign it? 11 derivative work that Incorporated System V APIs. 1
12 A, Yeah. 12 Q. Did it incorporate anything from System V 3
13 Q. So what terms, if any, were negotiated 13 other than the application programming interfaces, the §
14 differently from the standard form agreement? 14 APIs? ;
15 A, None that I'm aware of. I mean, you had to 15 MR. KAQ: Objection to form.
16 put the names and addresses and parties into the 16 You can answer.
17 dooument. 17 THE WITNESS: Mot that I know of. AsI've
18 Q. So would it belfair, then, to say that there 18 said before, there were probably some things like
18 really was no negotiatipn other than price? 19 copyright notices and header files and things like that
20 MR. KAQ: Objection to form. 20 that had to be, just as a matier of making it useful, 2
21 MR. HEISE: Q.| You may answer. 21 copied from the System V source. ' :
22 A. Okay. 22 MR. HEISE: Q. And do you recall whether 5
23 MR, KAO: Yeah, sorry. 23 Sequent had licensed System V, Release 3, or System V, :
24 MR. HEISE: You can tack that onto the end of 24 Release 4, or any other particular release of System V? &
25 every time somebody gays "objection” unless he says it's | 25 A. To my recollection, only 5.2 was licensed. F
§
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1 Q. And when you say "5.2,” you're seeing 1 customer scmething that Sequent would aliow its
2 System V, Release 27 ' Z  customers to advertise? ) i
3 A, Yes, ' B 3 MR. KAO: Objection to form. :
4 Q. Do you know whether any subsequent agreements | 4 THE WITNESS: I don't understand the question.
5 were ever entered into by| Sequent for licensing of 5 ~ MR.HEISE: Sure. Il be glad to -- ;
& System V code besides the three tha t are attached to 6 Q. So, for example, the marketing value of being :
7 your declaration? 7 an AT&T customer, would Sequent tell its customers that |
8 A. Not to my knowledge. 8 it could tell the world that it's using Dynix which is ;
g Q. Do you know whather Sequent ever ficense 9 derived from ATBT? ‘
10 System V, Release 4?7 10 A, No.
11 A. 1don" know that, - 11 MR. KAQ: Objection to form.
12 Q. - After you left Segpent in 1996, did Sequent 12 MR. HEISE: Q. Do you know whether Sequent
13 continue to use Unix, to your knowledge? 13 has stated, either publidy or internally, that Dynix is
14 A, You mean continye to sell it as a product? 14 derived from Unix System V?
15 Q. Continué to use -} I may have misspoken. 15 . A. Idon't know that explicitly. I doubt that
16 After you feft, do you know whether Sequent 16 that statement was made.
17 continued to use Unix System V? 17 Q. Atthe time that you signed Exhibit 1 to
18 A, Internally -- I'll agswer it; Internally, 18 Exhibit 100, which you characterized as a benign
19 Sequent used Dynix as its operating system for its own 19 agreement, was there anything that you found undear or ;
20 commercial applications and, of course, others, Windows. |20 ambiguous in the document itself?
21 Tt continued to sell both Dynix and Dynix/pbx. L2 A. Yes,
22 Q. Whell, you understood that both Dynix and 22 Q. Okay. Tell us, at the time that you signed
23 Dynixfptx contained Unix|System V code? 23 it, what you thought was undear or ambiguous.
24 MR. KAD: Objectlon to form. 24 A. Well, there are many terms, many things that -
25 THE WITNESS: Np. h 25 are imprecise, In this particular case, the definition
_ : : . Page 86 Page 88 [t
1 MR. HEISE: Q. You have no understanding of 1 of "software product” just says Systém V source code.
2 that? ‘ 2 It's not a fisting of all the modules. Methods and
3 A, First; I don't know it. And Dynix itself 3 procedures is not specific 2 5 to are these patented
-4 doesn't have, to the best of my knowledge, any System V | 4 methods, are these industry-standard procedures, covered
5 codeinit 5 by a standards body. 1 mean, there's lots of
6 Q. Do you know whether it contains anything from 6 imprecision in this document.
7 System V, whether it be|source code, methods and -7 Q. Wwell, that's what I'm trying to find out from
8 concepts, structures, sequence and organization, 8 youis: What in this agreement you believe was undlear
9 anything— - 9 or ambiguous at the time that you entered into it? So,
13 MR. KAD: Objection. 10 so far you've identified Section 1.04, the definition of
11 . MR. HEISE: Q. -1- whatsoever ﬁ'orn Unix 11 *software product”; and In Section 7.06, the methods and
12 System V? 12 concepts. ’ '
'13 MR. KAC: Objection to form 13 Is there a nything else that you believed was
14 THE WITNESS: 1 don't know that explicitly. 14 unclear or ambiguous at the time that you entered
15 MR. HEISE: Q. Was there any reason, besides 15 into -- excuse me -- Exhibit 1 to Exhibit 1007
16 having access to the Unjx System V application 16 MR. KAD: Ohjection to form.
17 programming interfaces, that Sequent licensed Unix 17 THE WITNESS: Idon't have a specific
18 System v? 18 recoltection of something that I thought was unclear at
19 A. Ican't state what value I would put onit, 19 the time. I remember only that we needed to ask them
20  but there was certainly a marketing value to having.-- 20 some questions about what thelr intent was.
21 to being an AT&T Systefn V licensee. 21 MR. HEISE: Q. In these conversations that
22 Q. Why is that? 22  you've indicated you believe took place between Sequent
23 A. It's essentially afiraction of customers and 23 and ATET, was it -- were they limited solely to
24  third-party application developers. 24 discussions of what the intent was or was there anything
25 Q. Was the marketing value of being an AT&T 25 else discussed during these conv ersations?
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1 A. The ones that 1 was party to, it was mostly 1 looking at, so -- but I'm --
2 about what the intent was, Idon't know what the other | 2 MR. KAOQ: But, yeah,
3 opes were. - 3 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
4 Q. Have you seen a single document from Sequent 4 MR. KAO: Is that what you're --
5  or AT&T that memorialized these discussions that you've 5 THE WITNESS: But I couldn't find the --
6 described regarding the'intent of the parties to this 6 MR. HEISE: Q. I want you to take whatever
7 written agreement? 7 time you need to -- o . : ‘
8 A. Thaven'tseen — 8 MR. KAO: Yeah, look through the document and
g MR. KAD: Objecti Ln_ to form. 9 see. - ) P :
10 THE WITNESS: I have not seen such a document. |10 THE WITNESS: Let me look ahead at the next
11 MR, HEISE: Q. Isthere anything else that i1 one, seeif L find it there.
12 you can identify for us that you believe was clear - 12 MR, KAQ: Did they get out of order?
13  excuse me -- unclear or gmbiguous other than what we've | 13 Ch, It could be that ~- looks like his copy
14 just discussed in Section |.04 and Section 7.08, the 14 is-—- . :
|15  definition of "software product” and "methods ‘and 15 THE WITNESS: I got them scrambled.
16 concepts," respectively? ' 16 MR. KAO: -- gotten out of order. Yeah.
17 MR. KAD: Objection to form. Are you asking i7 THE WITNESS: Okay.
18 for his recollection of what he remembers from the time | 18 I know it's not in there, T'll be careful
18 period or sitting here today? 19 here. . .
20 MR. HEISE: TI'm still back at the time of - 20 1 think it's my error. The parenthetical
21 entering into this agreement. 21 notes are in my declaration, not in the document.
22 THE WITNESS: Not to my recollection. 22 MR. HEISE: Q. So that portion of your
23 MR. HEISE: Q. Having had the opportunity to 23  declaration is unclear?
24 review the agreements again this moming, having had the | 24 A. Idon't think it's unclear.
25 opportunity to review them apparently on several 25 MR. KAQ: Objection to form.
Page 90 ' Page 92 ¥
1 ocrasions with counsel for IBM, is there anything that 1 MR. HEISE: Q. My question before was: When {i
2 you view in this agreement that is unclear or ambiguous | 2 you signed the agreement, what did you believe was 4
3 today? 3 unclear and ambiguous? “And you Identified 1.04 -- =
4 MR. KAD: Objection to form, 4. A. Two items. ?
5 You can answer. 5 Q. --software products, and methods and concepts
6 THE WITNESS: Look, today I would also 6 in7.06. E
7 critique it on the parenthetical exceptions, "except as 7 A. Right. ]
8 otherwise may be permitted,” since there's no reference | 8 Q. Ithen asked you: As you sit here today, £
19 there : 9 after having the opportunity to review with counsel for
10 MR, HEISE: Q. And what paragraph are you 10 1BM, go through all this stuff again, is there anything '
11 referring to, sir? ' i1 further that you found to be unclear or ambiguous? And
12 A. The phrase "except as otherwise may be 12 you said, "The parenthetical "except as otherwise :
13 authorized or permitted)" I'll see if I can find you a 13  permitted.” And I asked you where that is in the ]
14 citation here. It's in the confidentiality paragraph. 14 document, and it does not appear in the document.
15 Q. That would be Section 7.06. 15 A That's correct. i
16 A. That's not It. : : 16 Q. And the document I'm referring to is 3
17 Well, I'm not finding it right away. But 17 Exhibit 1, the software agreement; right? b
18 there's a parenthetical rjote in several occasions that 18 A. Yes, 'f'
19 just says - it provides an exception to the 19 Q. So thatis not something that — E
20 confidentiality rule, but there's no citation. So it's 20 A, That is not something - £
21 vague as to what those lexceptions are and where they |21 Q. --is newly found to be -- f
22 might reside. This is nat a monument to drafting. 22 A, Thatis correct. %
23 MR. KAO: Twas|going to say, if it may speed 23 Q. -- ambiguous or unclear? a
24 things up, I think he's talking about 7.06(a), but -- 24 A. Thal's correct. H
25 MR, HEISE: Wel|, that's what I thought he was |25 Q. Andin fact, where that appears is in your 3
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1 affidavit or declaration? 1 goés on to talk about interpreted information. It's E
2 A, In my declaration, that's right. 2 pretty expansive. k
3 Q. -Is there anything else, sir, either at the 3 MR. HEISE: Q. That's correct. It's much ‘
4 time or as you sit here today, that you can identify for | 4 more expansive than just source code, is it not?
5 us in this software agreament that you believe is 5 ~ MR. KAO: Objection to form. :
6 unclear or ambiguous? 6 THE WITNESS: Yes.
7 MR. KAD: Objection to form. 7 MR. HEISE: Q. Was there anything unclear
8 THE WITNESS: No. I think the initial 8 about the fact that 1.04 covered much more than simply
9 document is very clear. It's a grant of access to 9 source code? '
10 source for internal use, . 10 ‘MR. KAQ: Objection to form.
11 MR. HEISE: Q. Well, let's talk about that . 11 THE WITNESS: No, it's not unclear that It
12 grant of right to use for internaf use. 12 covers much more. What it Is unclear about is: What -
13 You're referrindf to Section 2.01; is that 13  are those items?
14 correct? 14 MR. HEISE: Q. Well, you would agree that it
15 A. Yes, - ‘ ) 15 defines "computer programs” to include source code In
16 Q. And actually,dim going out of order. I'm 16 object code format; right?
17 going to get back to that in one second, 17 A. Yes.
18 The first item that you indicated was unclear 18 Q. It also expands to indude information used or
19 &t the time that you signed it was Section 1,04, the 19 interpreted by computer programs and documentation
20 software product. : 20 relating to the use of the computer programs.
21 A Yes, . 121 So you understood that there were more than
22 Q. The agreement states that: ) 22 just source code being covered by the term "software
23 "SOFTWARE PRODUCT means materials such as 23 product"?
24 COMPUTER PROGRAMS, information used or 24 A. Yes,
25 interpreted by COMPUTER PROGRAMS and 25 - Q. With respect to 2.01, the one we were just
Page 54 Page 96 ;
1 documentatlon relating to the use of COMPUTER 1 getting ready to talk to before I interrupted myself it E
2 PROGRAMS, Materipls available from ATET for 2 indicates that: f‘
3 a specific SOFTWARE PRODUCT are listed in the 3 "AT&T grants to LICENSEE" -- In this case, g
4 -Schedule for such SO FTWARE PRODUCT." 4 meaning Sequent -- "a personal, i
5 Is that a correct statement of what the 5 nontransferable and nonexclusive right to use ?
6 agreement defines "software product” under Section 1.04? | 6 in the United States each SOFTWARE PRODUCT )i
7 A. Thatis, 7 identified in the one or more Supplements If .
8 Q. Whatis unclear about the definition of 8 hereto, solely for LICENSEE'S own intemal
9 "software product” as set forth in the a greement? S business purposes and solely on or in i
110 A. In this particular case, it's not an exact 10 conjunction with DESIGNATED CPUs for such ?
11  list of what those programs-are. The definition is 11 SOFTWARE PRODUCT." i
12 dleat, so far as it goes, in that it's the programs. It 12 Is that a correct statement, sir? i
13 doesn't state that they're in source form. It's pretty 13 A, Yes, thatsa.. F
14  vague as to information |used or interpreted by computer 14 Q. And it'sin here where it makes dear one of E
15 programs, because that|might come from human beings as | 15  the topics we were talking about earlier, that it's for 3
16 well as be part of the text files and documentation 16 licensee's own internal business purposes, which is how |§
17 files, Soit's @ pretty wide-open definition. 17 you had characterized this agreement before. Is this ‘
18 Q. Well, in fact, sir| computer programs Is 18 where you're getling the language from - 3
19 defined bath to include gource code a nd object code. 19 A Yes.
20 A. Yes, 20 Q. -- thatthis was a document memerializing that
21 Q. Soitis clear with respect to that, is it 21 It was for Sequent's own internal business purposes? :
22 not? 22 A, Right.
23 MR. KAQ: Objeciion to form. 23 MR. KAD: Objection to form. ]
24 THE WITNESS: It's clear that it includes 24 MR. HEISE: Q. Would you agree, sir, that it
25 source and object forms, and then it goes -- however, it 25 clearly limits the right of Sequent to use the product
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